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IN THE COURT OF APPEALS
OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
DIVISION II

STATE OF WASHINGTON,
Respondent, NO. 39741-2-11

V. RESPONSE TO MOTION FOR
DISCRETIONARY REVIEW

ROBERT REGINALD COMENOUT, SR.
EDWARD A. COMENOUT, SR., AND
ROBERT REGINALD COMENOUT, JR.,

Petitioner.

L IDENTITY OF PARTY:

Respondent, State of Washington, as represented by the Pierce County

Prosecutor’s Office, requests the relief designated in Part II.

II. STATEMENT OF RELIEF SOUGHT:

The State of Washington asks this Court to deny the motion for discretionary
review seeking review of the decision denying the defendant’s motion to

dismiss/suppress, entered in Pierce County Superior Court Case Nos. 08-1-04682-8
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(Robert Reginald Comenout, Sr.), 08-1-04681-0 (Edward A. Comenout Sr.), and 08-1-
04680-1 (Robert Reginald Comenout Jr). Appendix 1 (Findings of fact and conclusions

of law on_motion).1 The superior court case is currently set for trial on January 20, 2010.

II.  FACTS RELEVANT TO MOTION:

Petitioners, Robert Reginald Comenout, Sr., Edward A. Comenout, Sr., and
Robert Reginald Comenout, Jr., hereinafter “defendants,” seek discretionary review of an
order denying their motion to dismiss. The State of Washington filed an information on
9/26/08 charging each of the defendants with (1) engaging in the business of cigarette
purchase, sale, consignment, or distribution without a license; (2) unlawful possession or
transportation of unstamped cigarettes: and (3) theft in the first degree. (Appendix 2).
The defendants subsequentiy filed a motion to dismiss/suppress claiming that: (1) the
State of Washington did not have subject matter jurisdiction; and (2) a cigarette compact
between the State of Washington and the Quinault Indian Tribe prevented the State from
prosecuting violations of RCW 82.24 et seq.

In September of 2006, the Washington State Liquor Control Board began
receiving complaints about the sale of untaxed cigarettes by the Indian Country Store,
908/920 River Road, Puyallup, Washington. The Indian Country Store is owned by
Edward A. Comenout, Sr., a registered Quinault Tribal member. The land occupied by the

Indian Country Store is held in trust by the United States Government for the benefit of

! Identical findings were entered in each cause number. The trial court has not entered a separate order
denying the defendants’ motion. '
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Edward A. Comenout, Sr. and others.- Robert Reginald Comenout, Sr. and Robert
Reginald Comenout, Jr. are engaged in the daily business of running the store. Neither the
Indian Country Store nor any of the individuals involved with the Store are licensed by an
Indian Tribe or the State of Washington to sell cigarettes.

The land has been the focus of multiple state and federal legal decisions. These
decisions date from 1975 through 1997, and, in each decision it has been clear that (1) the
land is outside of the boundaries of any formal reservation, and (2) the land is not exempt
from the State of Washington’s excise tax on cigarettes.

After a lengthy investigation by WSLCB, on 7/25/08 officers served a search
warrant on the Indian Country Store. The WSLCB officers seized 37,000 cartons of
cigarettes because the authorized tax stamps were not attached. Some of the cartons did
have Idaho Tribal stamps attached, but those are not authorized in the State of -
Washington. The Washington State cigarette excise tax is $20.25 per carton of cigarettes.
The tax on 37,000 cartons is $750,000.

After a hearing on August 27, 2009, the Honorable Katherine M. Stolz denied the
defendants’ motion. While no order denying the motion has been entered, the court did
enter Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law setting forth its reasons for denying the

motion. (Appendix 1).
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IV. LAW AND ARGUMENT:

A. AS THE STATE OF WASHINGTON HAS CRIMINAL JURISDICTION
OVER INDIAN TRUST LANDS THAT ARE NOT WITHIN THE
CONFINES OF ANY RECOGNIZED TRIBAL RESERVATION, THE
TRIAL COURT PROPERLY FOUND THE STATE HAS
JURISDICTION OVER THE CRIMES THAT OCCURRED ON
DEFENDANTS’ PROPERTY.

In 1963, the State of Washington amended RCW 37.12.010 following Congress’s
enactment of Public Law 280, to assert civil and criminal jurisdiction over all Indian
lands outside of established Indian reservations. RCW 37.12.010; State v. Cooper, 130
Wn.2d 770, 775-776, 928 P.2d 406 (1996). “Allotted or trust lands are not excluded from
full nonconsensual state jurisdiction unless they are within an established Indian
reservation.” Cooper at 776 (internal quotations omitted); RCW 37.12.010.

The Washington State Supreme Court in Cooper controls the instant case as it
decided the same issue presented here. In Cooper, the defendant committed a crime on
property that was held in trust by the United States, but which was outside the boundaries
of an Indian reservation. Cooper at 772. In analyzing whether the State courts had
jurisdiction over this offense, the Court reviewed the history of jurisdiction in Washington
over Indians and Indian country. In this instance, “Indian Country” means tribal or
allotted lands within the confines of an established Indian reservation.

Prior to the enactment by Congress of Public Law 280 in 1953, criminal offenses
committed by Indians in Indian Country were subject to either federal jurisdiction or
tribal jurisdiction. Cooper at 772-773. Public Law 280 gave five States criminal

jurisdiction over all Indian land within their borders, with the exception of three

reservations. Several other States were given consent by Congress to assume jurisdiction,
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if they wished, by passage of statute or amendment to their state constitution. Cooper at
773. Washington was one of the States that was given consent to assume jurisdiction.
Cooper, at 773.

Pursuant to this congressional authorization, the Washington Legislature amended
RCW 37.12.010 to assert nonconsensual civil and criminal jurisdiction over all Indian
country with certain exceptions. The exceptions are for trust and allotted lands within a
reservation, where the tribe has not requested state jurisdiction; jurisdiction over crimes
committed by Indians on trust land within a reservation is still shared by the tribe and the
federal government. Cooﬁer at 775-776, 780-781; State v. Pink, 144 Wh. App. 945, 185
P.3d 634 (2008). In 1968, Congress narrowed the States' powers under Public Law 280
by enacting the Indian Civil Rights Act of 1968, 25 U.S.C. § 1321. Under the act, a State
may not assume criminal jurisdiction without the consent of the tribe. This jurisdictional
limitation was not retroactive; jurisdiction a State assumed before the 1968 act was not
displaced. State v. Hoffman, 116 Wn.2d 51, 68-69, 804 P.2d 577 (1991).

The United States Supreme Court has reviewed RCW 37.12 010, finding that.it
complies with Public Law 280 and is constitutional. State of Washington v.
Confederated Bands and Tribes of the Yakima Indian Nation, 439 U.S. 463, 473-474,
99 S. Ct. 740, 58 L.Ed.2d 740 (1979). One of the issues in Confederated Bands and

Tribes was whether Public Law 280 required Washington to amend its disclaimer of

| authority over Indian country in the State constitution. The Court found that Public Law

280 does not require “disclaimer” States to amend their constitution in order to claim
jurisdiction. Confederated Bands and Tribes, at 493. The Court found that, under Public

Law 280, the State must take some positive action for effective jurisdiction. The Court

RESPONSE TO MOTION FOR Office of Prosecuting Attorney
DISCRETIONARY REVIEW 930 Tacoma Avenue South, Room 946
resp discrev.doc Tacoma, Washington 98402-2171

Page 5 Main Office: (253) 798-7400




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

24
25

noted that the Washington State Supreme Court had already decided this issue in State v.
Paul, 53 Wn.2d 789, 337 P.2d 35 (1959), when it found that the legislative action was
sufficient to remove the constitutional barrier. Confederated Bands and Tribes at 493;
Paul at 794, | |

The court in Cooper, after reviewing the history, case law, and statutes made
several determinations that are relevant to this matter. First, Washington has assumed
civil and criminal jurisdiction over all Indian lands outside of an established Indian
reservation. Cooper, at 775-776. Second, Indian trust or allotted lands are not excluded
from jurisdiction unless they are within an established Indian reservation. Cooper at 775-
776. Third, the term “reservation” in RCW 37.12.010 does not include Indian lands
outside of the formal boundaries of established reservations. Cooper at 778. Fourth, there
is no preemption by federal law since the State of Washington was given consent by the
United States to assume jurisdiction.‘ Cooper at 773.

It has been firmly established that the defendants’ property at 908/920 River Road
in Puyallup is not within the confines of an Indian reservation as this has been litigated
beforei See, Matheson v; Kinnear, 393 F. Supp. 1025, 1025-1026 (W.D. Wash. 1975).
Therefore, defendants’ status as enrolled members of the Quinualt tribe has no meaning
as to the enforcement of Washington’s excise tax on cigarettes. See Matheson v.
Washington State Liquor Control Board, 132 Wn. App. 280, 285, 130 P3d 897 (2006)
(off reservation activities are subject to taxation under RCW 82.24.900 and 82.24.040).
Washington law treats Indians doing business on tribal trust lands that are not within the

confines of a reservation the same as any other citizen of the State. Matheson, at 285-286.
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(“Mr. Matheson’s Indian status does not prevent the State from imposing an excise tax on
his activities off-reservation.”)

The recent decision of the Court of Appeals, Division II, in State v. Pink, 144 Wn.
App. 945, 185 P.3d 634 (2008), is in accord with the Supreme Court’s decision in
Cooper (1996). In Pink the defendant, an enrolled Quinault, was a passenger in a vehicle
stopped for a traffic infraction on a State highway that crossed the Quinault Indian
Reservation. Pink at 948. The defendant was arrested on an outstanding warrant and
found to be in possession of a firearm. The defendant had a prior felony conviction and
was charged with being a felon in possession of a firearm in the second degree. Pink at
948-949. At issue in Pink, was whether or not the State highway where the defendant
had been stopped was: 1) within the boundaries of the Quinault Indian Reservation; 2)
part of the alloted or trust lands; or, 3) State property. Pink 950-956. The court held that
because the Quinault Indian Tribe had granted the State only an easement to build a road,
that it had not ceded any interest in the land over which the highway passed so it
remained part of the reservation. Pink, at 954-955. As the State charged Pink with an
offense other than one involving the operation of a motor vehicle, the jurisdictional
provisions of RCW 37.12.010 did not apply. Id. The court found that the State lacked the
jurisdiction to prosecute Pink for the weapons offense as he was an enrolled member of
the Quinault Tribe who committed his offense on the Quinault Reservation.

In the instant matter, there is no question that the defendants’ land where the
offense occurred is not within the boundaries of any federally recognized Indian
reservation. The Quinault Reservation is at least fifty miles to the west on the coast of

Washington. Previous court decisions regarding this property have noted that the
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property is trust land, not reservation land, and therefore cigarette sales conducted on this
property are not exempt from state excise tax. Matheson v. Kinnear. 393 F.Supp. at
1026-1029. Consequently, the trial court properly found that the State of Washington has
jurisdiction over the defendants’ trust lands and may enforce its cigarette excise taxes on

their off-reservation business.

B. THE TRIAL COURT PROPERLY FOUND THAT THE STATE OF
WASHINGTON DOES NOT HAVE AN AGREEMENT WITH THE
QUINAULT INDIAN TRIBE WHICH WOULD PREVENT THE
STATE FROM ENFORCEMENT ACTION AGAINST THE
DEFENDANTS.

The State of Washington and the Quinault Indian Tribe entered into a cigarette

excise tax compact (“Compact”) on January 3™ 2005. (Appendix 3). The Compact

| defines “Tribal retailer” as a “member owned smoke shop located in Indian country and

licensed by the Tribe.” Compact page #5.
Indian country is defined on page 3, subsection 8, of the Compact as being
consistent with the meaning given in 18 United States Code section 1151. To include:

a. All land within the limits of the Quinault Reservation.....

b. All lands placed in trust or restricted status for individual member
Indians or for the Tribe, and such other lands as may hereafter be
added thereto under any law of the United States, except as
provided by law.

c. All Indian allotments or other lands held in trust for a tribal
member or the Tribe, the Indian titles to which have not been
extinguished, including rights of way running through the same.

There are requirements with licensing: (1) access of the department to observe
sales (Compact page #6); (2) taxes on all retail sales (Compact page #6); and (3)
cigarettes sold by retailers shall bear either a Washington State Tribal Compact Stamp or

a Quinault Nation Tax Stamp (Compact at page #8).
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The defendants are tribal members; however, as discussed above their property
and place of business is outside of the Quinault Reservation. The State of Washington has
assumed jurisdiction over all Indian lands outside of an established reservation, Cooper at
775-776. Although, the Compact is between the Quinault Tribe and the State, the
defendants, who are Quinault tribal members, have rejected the Compact. Additionally,
the defendants have never been licensed by the Quinault tribe so as to bring them within
the terms of the Compact for a “tribal retailer.”

In the case now before the court, none of the 37,000 cartons of cigarettes seized
from defendants’ property on 7/25/08 bore cigarette tax stamps that were either
Washington State Tribal Compact Stamps or Quinault Nation Tax Stamps. The cigarettes
purchased between April of 2007 and Jﬁly 25" 2007, by officers of the Liquor Control
Board did not have stamps or, in two instances, had Couer d’Alene Tribal stamps. The
defendants are not within the definition, and do not qualify as “Tribal retailers” under the
Compact, so they cannot rely on its provisions.

Under the terms of the Compact, retail sales of unstamped cigarettes would be
cause for termination of the Compact. Compact at p. 14- 15. Even if the defendants were
party to the Compact, their actions would have terminated the Compact and its provisions
as to who may seek enforcement. The Quinault tribe is given the authority to enforce the
Comp;ct against persons who have been part of the Compact. The Compact gives the
enforcement authority to the Washington State Liquor Control Board over persons who
have never been part of the Compact. Compact at p. 11 (°...therefore the Liquor Control

Board is responsible for the enforcement activities that come under the terms of Chapter

82.24 RCW.”)
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In the instant matter, the Washington State Liquor Control Board is enforcing the
provisions of Chapter 82.24 RCW. Specifically, the State alleges that defendants are in
violation of RCW 82.24.500 for engaging in selling cigarettes without a license, and
RCW 82.24 250 for possessing in excess of 10,000 cigarettes without the proper stamps
being affixed to the packages. Under the terms of the Compact, these offenses may be
pursued in State court. The defendants may not invoke the terms of a compact to which
they are not a party. See, Matheson v. The Washington State Liquor Control Board,
132 Wn. App. 280, 130 P.3d 897 (2006). The trial court did not err in concluding that the
Compact did not bar the state prosecution.

C. FEDERAL LAW DOES NOT PREEMPT WASHINGTON

STATE’S EXCISE TAX ON CIGARETTES AS IT APPLIES TO
INDIANS.

The fact that the defendants’ property is designated as Indian trust land and is exempt
from property taxes does not mean that the business on the property is exempt from
paying the State excise tax on the sale of cigarettes. Matheson v Kinnear, 393 F. Supp. at
1029; Matheson v. The Washington State Liquor Control Board, 132 Wn. App. 280,
285, 130 P.3d 897 (2006).

The defendants’ rely on many federal cases that at first glance seem to imply that
there is federal law that would preempt Washington’s cigarette excise tax as it applies to
Indians. A closer look at these cases, however, indicates that federal law only preempts
the State of Washington’s when the sales or events occur on an Indian Reservation. See
United States v. Bruce, 394 F.3d 1215 (9™ Cir. 2005); Confederated Tribes of the
Colville Reservation v. State of Washington, 938 F.2d 146 (9™ Cir. 1991); Washington v.

Confederated Tribes of Colville Indian Reservation, 447 U.S. 134, 100 S. Ct. 2069, 65
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L.Ed.2d 10 (1980). Federal law does not preempt the State of Washington from
regulating the transport of cigarettes and enforcing its excise tax on Indian transportation
and sales of cigarettes that occur outside of recognized Indiaﬁ reservations.

The State agrees that Washington cannot enforce the cigarette excise tax on sales
to enrolled tribal members within the confines of their reservation. See Bercier v. Kiga,
127 Wn. App.809, 103 P.3d 232 (2004). But here, the trial court properly found that the
defendants’ property in this matter, and the site of their business, is not within the
confines of a reservation. As such, the trial court correctly found under controlling
precedent that the State has jurisdiction to enforce its cigarette excise tax on off
reservation sales. See Findings of Fact (Appendix 1); Matheson v. The Washington State
Liquor Control Board, 132 Wn. App. 280; 130 P.3d 897 (2006); State v. Cooper, 130
Wn.2d 770, 928 P.2d 406 (1996).

D.  THIS COURT SHOULD DENY REVIEW BECAUSE DEFENDANT

HAS NOT MET THE CRITERIA OF RAP 2.3(b).

As defendant is seeking review of an order not subject to direct review under RAP
2.2, he must meet the criteria set forth in RAP 2.3(b). That rule provides, in part:

Considerations governing acceptance of review. Except as provided in

section (d), discretionary review may be accepted only in the following

circumstances:

(1) The superior court has committed an obvious error which would render
further proceedings useless; or

(2) The superior court has committed probable error and the decision of
the superior court substantially alters the status quo or substantially limits
the freedom of a party to act;
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(3) The superior court has so far departed from the accepted and usual
course of judicial proceedings, or so far sanctioned such a departure by an
inferior court or administrative agency, as to call for review by the
appellate court;

(4) The superior court has certified, or that all parties to the litigation have
stipulated, that the order involves a controlling question of law as to which
there is a substantial ground for a difference of opinion and that
immediate review of the order may materially advance the ultimate
termination of the litigation. ’

RAP 2.3(b).

The defendants’ claim to seek discretionary review under RAP 2.3(b)(4), which
would require superior court certification that there is a controlling question of law for
which there is a substantial grounds for difference of opinion. The defendants filed a
motion seeking such certification from the trial court, but there has been no such
certification issued. The State asserts that there are no substantial grounds for a difference
of opinion for the reasons set forth above. The defendants also claim under RAP 2.3
(b)(1) that the superior court has committed an obvious error by concluding that the State
courts have criminal jurisdiction over Indian trust lands outside of the boundaries of a
federaliy recognized Indian Reservation. As argued above, the trial court correctly
applied controlling precedent in finding that the State had jurisdiction.

This Court should deny the motion for discretionary review.
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V. CONCLUSION:

For the foregoing reasons, the State asks this court to deny the motion for

discretionary review.

DATED: December 1, 2009.

Certificate of Service:

The undersigned certifies that on this day she delivered
ABC-LMI delivery to the attorney of record for the appe
a true and correct copy/copies of the document to which this
is attached. This statement is certified to be true and correct under penalty
of perjury of the laws of the State of Washington. Signed at Tacoma,
Washington, on the date below.

“ﬂ/\\i\m% Vp—

20
Signature”

Date
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SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNTY

STATE OF WASHINGTON, |
' Plaintiff, | CAUSE NO. 08-1-04680-1
_ Vs. ' ,
'ROBERT REGINALD COMENOUT, FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS ON
-~ | MOTION TO DISMISS/SUPPRESS
Defendant. ' :

THIS MATTER having corhe on before the Honorable Katherine M. Stolz on the 9th day

of June, 2009, and the court having rendered an oral ruhng thereon, the court herew1th makes the

following F1nd1ngs and Concluswns

. THE UNDISPUTED FACTS

1) On 7/25/08 officers from the Washington State Liquor Control Board pursuant to a

" search warrant entered the premise‘s of the Comenout’s, The Indian Counti’y Store, 908/920

River Road' Puyaliup, Washington, and seized 37,000 ceiftons of unstamped cigarettes.

2) Washmgton law, RCW 82.24. 030 requires that all cigarette packages have a tax stamp
affixed prior to handhng or distributing to enforce the collectlon of the State Cigarette Excise

3) Between April of 2007 and 7/25/09 officers of the Washington State Liquor Control

Board _r'nade numerous purchases of cigarettes, both cartons and single packs, from the Indian
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Country Store tliat did not bear a Washington Itax stamp or any stamp from a reco gnized Indizin ;
Tribe in the State of Wa‘shington." | |

4) On 9/26/08 the State of Washington filed charges on EPWARD A, COMENOUT,
ROBERT R. COMENOUT, Sr., and ROBERT R. COMENOUT, Jr.. All tliree men were charged
as accomplices with Engeging In Business of Cigarette Purchase, Saie, Consignment, or

Distribution Without a License; Unlawful Possession or Transportation of Unstamped Cigarettes;

Jand Theft in the First Degree.

~ 5) The Comenout’s property at 908/920 River Road Puyallup is Indian Trust Land,

‘however, the land is not within the borders of any established Indian reservation. |

6). EDWARD A. COMENOUT is an enrolled member of the Qumault Indran Tribe. The
Quinault Reservation is located 60 miles to the West on the Coast of Washington

7) The Quinault Tribe and the State of Washmgton entered into a Cigarette Compact on |
173/ 05 that is still in effect. The Com_p_act req'l_iir_es “tribal retailers” to be licensed by‘ the tribe. |

The Gompact reqliires that all cigarettes sold by “tribal retailers” shall bear either a Washington |

State Tribal Compact Stamp or a Quinault Nation Stamp.

) The defendants filed a Motion to Suppress or Dismiss for three reasons:
1) The State lacks jurisdiction on Indian Trust Lands.
2) The Compact prevents the State from taxing “tribal retailers”.
3) Federal law preempts Washington law regarding cigarette taxes.
THE DISPUTED FACTS
1) The'Comenoutsassert that under the terms of the Cigarette Combact they qualify asa
“tribal retailer” and therefore, jurisdiction is properly with the Quinault Indian Tribe or the

Federal Government.
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2) The State asserts that the Comerlouts have rej ected the Compact. The Comenouts are

not licensed by the Quinault Tribe as required by the Compact. The Comenouts have not paid the

_ taxes that are requ1red by the Compact as evidenced by the lack of stamps on the 37,000 can:ons

of cigarettes selzed The Compact gives enforcement authonty for violations of RCW 82.24 to

the Washington State Liquor Control Board

- FINDINGS AS TO DISPUTED FACTS

1) The Court finds that the Cigarette Compact ‘between the State of Washington and the

-Quinault Indlan Trlbe is an agreement between two sovereign entities.

2) The Court finds that the Quinault Indian Tribe has concurrent jurisdiction with the

State of Washington over the Comenouts possession and sale of cigarettes.

3) The Court firids that the Qumault Indlan Tribe has glven the power to enforce

v1olat10ns of RCW 82.24 to the State of Washmgton

CONCLUSIONS‘OF LAW"

1) The Court concludes that the State of Washington per RCW 32 12.010 has Junsdlctlon

over the Comenout’s property at 908/920 River Road Puyallup Washmgton

2) The Court concludes that the State of Washington and the Quiniault Indian Tribe have

- concurrent jurisdiction over the Comenout’s possession and sale of cigarettes.

'3) The Court concludes that the Comenouts owe the taxes on the 37,000 cartons of

cigarettes to either the State of Washington or the Quinault Indian Tribe. -

4) The Court concludes that the Quinault Indian Tribe has deferred enforcement authority

in this matter to the State of Washington.
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. 5) The courtvdenies the defendant’s Motion to Dismiss/Suppress.

DONE IN OPEN COURT this __day of November, 2009.
‘ v - Katherine M. Stolz, .Tudge
Presented by:
TOM L. MOORE
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
WSB # 17542 :

.Approved as to Form:

. Randal B. Brown

Attorney for Defendant 3 .

WSB # 24181 '

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS ON . Office of ihe Prosecuting Attorney
MOTION TO SUPPRESS CrR 3 6 4 o 930 Tacoma Avenue South, Room 946

... Tacoma, Washington 98402-2171. | . . .
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SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNTY'

24

STATE OF WASHINGTON, |
| Plaintiff, . | CAUSENO. 08-1-04681-0
' VS.,
'EDWARD A COMENOUT, INFORMATION
S : _Defendant. . | e
-DOB: 8/16/1928 SEX:MALE " RACE: AMER INDIAN/ALASKAN
PONH: SID#: UNKNOWN  DOL#: UNKNOWN »

CO-DEF: ROBERT REGINALD COMENOQUT 08-1 046801 ‘
CO-DEF: ROBERT REGINALD COMENOUT, SR (8-1-04682-8

| | COQUNT IV |
I, GERALD A. HORNE; Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the

authority of the State of Washington, do accuse EDWARD A COMENOUT of the crime of ENGAGING

IN BUSINESS OF CIGARETTE PURCHASE SALE CONSIGNMENT OR DISTRIBUTION

: WITHOUT TICENSE, commrtted as follows

That EDWARD A COMENOUT, acting as a pnnmpal or an accomplice, m the State of
Washmgton, on or about the 25th day of July, 2008, engage in the business of purchasmg, sell_mg,
consigning, or distributing cigarettes in this state without a license issued pursuant to RCW 82.24,
contrary to RCW. 82.24.500, and against the peace and dignity of the State of Washington.

~ COUNTV :
~And ], GERALD A. HORNE Prosecuting Attorney for Prerce County; in the name and by the ’
authorlty of the State of Washmgton do accuse EDWARD A COMENOUT of the crime of |
UNLAWFUL POSSESSION OR TRANSPORTATION OF UNSTAMPED CIGARETTES, a crime of -
the samie or similar character, and/_or a crime based on the same conduct or on a series of acts connected:

together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, and/or so closely connected in respect to time,

INFORM_ATION- 1 . . - Office of the Prosecuting Attorney
’ o 930 Tacoma Avenue South, Room 946

Main Office (253) 798-7400

.. ..Tacoma, WA 98402-2171 | .
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place and occasion that it would be difficult to separate proof of one'charge-from proof of the others,

committed as follows: 3

That EDWARD A COMENOUT actingas a prmclpal or an accomphce in the State of
Washington, on or about the 25th day of July, 2008, did unlawﬁllly, felonrously,,and,knowrngly or

intentionally'possess or transportn in the State ofWashington a'quantity‘in ‘excess of ten thoysand

cigaretteé without the proper stamps affixed as required by RCW Chapter 82.24 and (i) where defendant

| did fail to give proper notice as required by RCW 82.24.250 prior to transporting the stamps; and (ii)

_ where defendant durmg the transport of such cigarettes did not actually possess invoices or - delivery

tickets showmg the' true name and address of the consignor or the seller, the true name and address of the
consignee or pu_rchaser, a__nd the quantity and brand of the mgarettes 50 trans_ported, and.‘(ln) where the
cigarettes were not consigned to-or purchased by any person anthorized by vRC_WChapt’er 82.24 to
possesé unstarnped cigarettes in this State, contrary to RCW 82.24.110(2), and against the peace and

dignity of the State of Washington.

- COUNT VI
And L GERALD A. HORNE Prosecuting Attorney for Pierce County, in the name and by the
authority of the State of Washlngton, do accuse EDWARD A COMENOUT of the crime of TI-]EFT ]N
THE FIRST DEGREE a crime of the same or 51m11ar character and/or a crrme based ¢ on the same

conduct or on a senes of acts connected together or constituting parts of a single scheme or plan, and/or

50 closely connected in respect to trme place and occasion that.it. would be drfﬁcult to separate proof of |

one charge from proof of the others, commrtted as follows

That EDWARD A COMENOQUT, acting as a prlncrpal oran accomplrce in the State. of
Washington, on or about the 25th day of July, 2008 did unlawfully and feloniously obtaln control over

property and/or serv1ces other than a firearm or a motor vehicle, belongmg to another, of a value- -

' exceeding $1 500 by color Vor aid of deception with intent to deprive said owner of such property and/or . -

services; contrary to RCW 9A 56 020(1)(b) and 9A.56.03 0(1)(a), and agamst the peace and dignity of the
State of Washrngton

DATED this 26th day of September, 2008.

WA ST LIQ CNTRL BOARD .~ GERALD A. HORNE

WAQWSLC - . - Pierce County Prosecuting Atto'rney
OM L. MOORE
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
WSB#: 17542
INFORMATION- 2 ) . . ) Office of the Prosecuting Attomey

-~ 930 Tacoma Avenue South, Room 946

-..Jacoma, WA 98402-2171 .4 . ... ... ..

Main Office (253) 798-7400
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SUPERIOR COURT OF WASHINGTON FOR PIERCE COUNTY

' STATE OF WASHINGTON,
Plaintiff, | cAUSE No. 08-1-04681-0
- ‘ o .
 EDWARD A COMEANOUT,A o | DECLARATION FOR DETERMINATION OF
o S PROBABLECAUSE
_ Defendant

TOM L. MOORE declares under penalty of perjury

ThatIam a deputy prosecuting attorney for Pierce County and I am famlhar w1th the police

o | renort and/or investigation conducted by the WA ST LIQ CNTRL BOARD, mcldent number 5E7107A

 That the pohce report and/or 1nvest1gat10n prov1ded me the followmg mformatlon

" That in Pierce County, Washington, , the. defendants ROBERT REG]NALD COMENOUT Ir.

EDWARD A. COMENOQUT, and ROBERT REGINALD COMENOUT, Sr. did commit the crimes of

ENGAGING IN THE BUSINESS OF PURCHASING; SELLING, CONSIGNING, OR DISTRIBUTING
CIGARETTES WITHOUT A LICENSE; POSSESSING OR TRANSPORTING IN EXCESS OF 10,000
CIGARETTES WITHOUT THE REQUIRED TAX STAMPS; and THEFT IN THE FIRST DEGREE.

' "EDWARD A. COMENOUT is the owner of the Indian Country Store located at 908/920 River
Road, Puyallup, Washington. The Indian Country Store sells cigarettes, other tobacco products, and .

| miscellaneous gifts. ROBERT REGINALD COMENOUT, Sr. and ROBERT REGINALD COMENOUT |

Jr. are.engaged in the daily business of running the store. Neither the Indian Country Store nor any of the
individuals named in this affidavit are licensed by an Indian Tribe or the State of Washmgton to-sell
cigarettes. RCW 82.24. 500 requires that any business in the State.of Washmgton that sells mgarettes be

Il licensed under chapter 82.24. COUNTS L, IV, and VII.

The land occupied by the Indian Country Store is held in trust for EDWARD A. COMENOUT by

| -the United States government for the benefit of EDWARD A. COMENOUT. The land is not within the

confines of any recognized reservation of any federally recognized Indian Tribe (spe01ﬁcally the Puyallup
or Quinault Tribés). The Puyallup Reservation is the closest reservation but the land is not within the '
confines of the Puyallup Reservation. EDWARD COMENQUT is a registered member of the Quinault
Tribe but the Qumault Reservation is approximately 250 miles to the West. The land is categorized as
“purchased land” not “allotted land” and therefore, bears no attributes of tribal government.

. The land has been the focus of multiple state and federal legal decisions. These decisions date -

" from 1975 through 1997, and, in each of the decisions it has been clear that (1) the land is outside of the

boundaries of any formal reservation and (2) the state has jurisdiction over trust land outside of the
boundaries of any formal reservatlon The land is not exempt. from the State of Washmgton s excise tax
on cigarettes.

RCW 82.24.110(2) provides that is unlawful ( a felony) for any petson to knowingly or
intentionally. to possess or transport within the state a quantlty in excess of 10,000 cigarettes unless the
proper stamps are affixed to the cigarettes. In other words, it is illegal to possess in excess of 10,000
cigarettes unless the taxes have been paid on those cigarettes.

In September of 2006 the Washington State Liquor Control Board began receiving complaints
about the sale of untaxed cigarettes from The Indian Country Store. The WSLCB began to investigate and

: ) Office of the P ting Atfs
DECLARATION FOR DETERMINATION 0T o Koo

OF PROBABLE CAUSE -1 _ S Tacoma, WA 98402-2171
: ] Main Office (253) 798-7400
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determmed that in the last ten years to the present date no taxes were paid or stamps purchased by The
Indian Country Store or any of the COMENOUTS. Between April of 2007 and the present, WSLCB
officers have made numerous purchases of cigarettes, both cartons and single packs of cigarettes. The
mgarettes purchased in. each instance did not have the proper stamps attached. Two of the packs of

- cigarettes did have Couer d’ Alené Tribal stamps attached, not the proper Washmgton State stamps. The |

WSLCB officers also observed cases of unstamped cigarettes bemg delivered to The Indian Country

Store. It is easy to spot unstamped cigarettes because a case must be split in half in order to stamp the
cigarettes. If the case has not been split then the cigarettes have not been stamped. -

On7/25/08 the WSLCB officers in an effort to enforce the Washington State cigarette tax served
a search warrant on The Indian Country Store. The agents contactéd ROBERT R. COMENOUT, Sr.
inside the business. ROBERT R. COMENOQUT, Sr. appeared to be in charge of the business. ROBERT R.
COMENOUT Sr. opened the safe and then, closed it for the agénts and was generally the person who -
answered the agent’s questions about the busmess ROBERT R. COMENOUT Jr. was contacted in the

| back of a pickup truck located in front of the business. ROBERT R. COMENOUT, Jr. refused to
i cooperate with the tax agents. Several employees of the business were contacted in and around the

.premiises. At least two of the employees indicated that they worked at the store for “BOB” COMENOUT.

The WSLCB tax agents seized 37, 000 cartons of cigarettes from the. grounds of The Indian
Country Store. The cigarettes were seized because the authorized tax stamps were hot attached. The

| cigarettes must have attached to each pack either a tax stamp or a tax exempt stamp. Some of the seized

cigarettes did have Idaho Tribal stamps attached. Idaho Tnbal stamps are not authorlzed in the State of
Washington.
The number of cigarettes in 37,000 cartons is approximately 7.4 million clgarettes Thls is well in

“excess of the 10,000 cigarettes that it is felony to possess unless the required tax stamps are attached

'CQUNTS I, V, AND VIIL

The Washington State cigarette excisé tax is $20.25 per carton of 01garettes The tax on 37,000’
cartons is $750,000. These are taxes that must be paid at the time the cigarettes are purchased bya retaﬂ
ora wholesale business. This is lost revenue to the State of Washmgton COUNTS III VL and IX.

I DECLARE UNDER PENALTY OF PERJURY UNDER THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF -
WASHINGTON THAT THE FOREGOING IS TRUE AND CORRECT. -

DATED September 26, 2008 _
PLACE: TACOMA, WA

2

| /TOM’L. NMOORE, WSB# 17542

DECLARATION FOR DETERMINATION | ; Office of the Prosecuting Attorney

930 Tacoma Avenue South, Room 946

OF PROBABLE CAUSE -2 - : . Tacoma, WA 98402-2171

Main Office (253) 798-7400 .
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